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the Interstate Land Sales Full Disclo-
sure Act (15 U.S.C. 1701 et seq.); the
rules and regulations set forth at 24
CFR parts 1710, 1715, and 1720; or any
order issued thereunder.

(b) Continuing violation. Each day
that a violation continues shall con-
stitute a separate violation.

(c) Maximum penalty. The maximum
penalty is $1,100 for each violation, up
to a limit for any particular person of
$1,100,000 during any one-year period.
Each violation shall constitute a sepa-
rate violation as to each sale or lease
or offer to sell or lease.

§ 30.60 Dealers or loan correspondents.

(a) General. The Assistant Secretary
for Housing-Federal Housing Commis-
sioner, or his or her designee, may ini-
tiate a civil money penalty action
against any dealer or loan correspond-
ent who violates section 2(b)(7) of the
National Housing Act (12 U.S.C. 1703).
Such violations include, but are not
limited to:

(1) Falsifying information on an ap-
plication for dealer approval or re-
approval submitted to a lender;

(2) Falsifying statements on a HUD
credit application, improvement con-
tract, note, security instrument, com-
pletion certificate, or other loan docu-
ment;

(3) Failing to sign a credit applica-
tion if the dealer or loan correspondent
assisted the borrower in completing
the application;

(4) Falsely certifying to a lender that
the loan proceeds have been or will be
spent on eligible improvements;

(5) Falsely certifying to a lender that
the property improvements have been
completed;

(6) Falsely certifying that a borrower
has not been given or promised any
cash payment, rebate, cash bonus, or
anything of more than nominal value
as an inducement to enter into a loan
transaction;

(7) Making a false representation to a
lender with respect to the credit-
worthiness of a borrower or the eligi-
bility of the improvements for which a
loan is sought.

(b) Continuing violation. Each day
that a violation continues shall con-
stitute a separate violation.

(c) Amount of penalty. The maximum
penalty is $5,500 for each violation, up
to a limit for any particular person of
$1,100,000 during any one-year period.

§ 30.65 Failure to disclose lead-based
paint hazards.

(a) General. The Director of the Office
of Lead Hazard Control, or his or her
designee, may initiate a civil money
penalty action against any person who
knowingly violates 42 U.S.C.
4852d(b)(1).

(b) Amount of penalty. The maximum
penalty is $11,000 for each violation.

Subpart C—Procedures
§ 30.70 Prepenalty notice.

Whenever HUD intends to seek a civil
money penalty, the official designated
in subpart B of this part, or his or her
designee (or the chairperson of the
Mortgagee Review Board, or his or her
designee, in actions under § 30.35), shall
issue a written notice to the respond-
ent. This prepenalty notice shall in-
clude the following:

(a) That HUD is considering seeking
a civil money penalty;

(b) The specific violations alleged;
(c) The maximum civil money pen-

alty that may be imposed;
(d) The opportunity to reply in writ-

ing to the designated program official
within 30 days after receipt of the no-
tice; and

(e) That failure to respond within the
30-day period may result in issuance of
a complaint under § 30.85 without con-
sideration of any information that the
respondent may wish to provide.

§ 30.75 Response to prepenalty notice.
The response shall be in a format pre-

scribed in the prepenalty notice. The
response shall include any arguments
opposing the imposition of a civil
money penalty that the respondent
may wish to present.

§ 30.80 Factors in determining appro-
priateness and amount of civil
money penalty.

In determining whether to seek a
penalty, and the amount of such pen-
alty, the officials designated in subpart
B of this part shall consider the follow-
ing factors:
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(a) The gravity of the offense;
(b) Any history of prior offenses. For

violations under §§ 30.25, 30.35, 30.45,
30.50, 30.55, and 30.60, offenses that oc-
curred prior to December 15, 1989 may
be considered;

(c) The ability to pay the penalty;
(d) The injury to the public;
(e) Any benefits received by the vio-

lator;
(f) The extent of potential benefit to

other persons;
(g) Deterrence of future violations;
(h) The degree of the violator’s cul-

pability;
(i) With respect to Urban Homestead

violations under § 30.30, the expendi-
tures made by the violator in connec-
tion with any gross profit derived; and

(j) Such other matters as justice may
require.

(k) In addition to the above factors,
with respect to violations under
§§ 30.45, 30.55, and 30.60, the Assistant
Secretary for Housing-Federal Housing
Commissioner, or his or her designee,
shall also consider:

(1) Any injury to tenants; and/or
(2) Any injury to lot owners.

§ 30.85 Complaint.
(a) General. Upon the expiration of

the period for the respondent to submit
a response to the prepenalty notice,
the official designated in subpart B of
this part, or his or her designee (or the
Mortgagee Review Board in actions
under § 30.35) shall determine whether
to seek a civil money penalty. Such de-
termination shall be based upon a re-
view of the prepenalty notice, the re-
sponse, if any, and the factors listed at
§ 30.80. A determination by the Mortga-
gee Review Board to seek a civil money
penalty shall be by a majority vote of
the Board.

(b) If a determination is made to seek
a civil money penalty, the official or
his or her designee, or the Mortgagee
Review Board, shall issue a complaint
to the respondent. The complaint shall
state the following:

(1) The factual basis for the decision
to seek a penalty;

(2) The applicable civil money pen-
alty statute;

(3) The amount of penalty sought;
(4) The right to submit a response in

writing, within 15 days of receipt of the

complaint, requesting a hearing on any
material fact in the complaint, or on
the appropriateness of the penalty
sought;

(5) The address to which a response
must be sent;

(6) That the failure to submit a re-
sponse may result in the imposition of
the penalty in the amount sought.

(c) A copy of this part and of 24 CFR
part 26, subpart B shall be included
with the complaint.

(d) Service of the complaint. The com-
plaint shall be served on the respond-
ent by first class mail, personal deliv-
ery, or other means. In cases of viola-
tions by mortgagees and lenders of 12
U.S.C. 1735f–14(b) (1)(D) or (1)(F), or by
GNMA issuers or custodians of 12
U.S.C. 1723i(b) (1)(G) or (1)(I), a copy of
the complaint shall be provided to the
Attorney General.

§ 30.90 Response to the complaint.
(a) General. The respondent may sub-

mit to HUD a written response to the
complaint within 15 days of its receipt.
The response shall be considered a re-
quest for a hearing. The response
should include the admission or denial
of each allegation of liability made in
the complaint; any defense on which
the respondent intends to rely; any
reasons why the civil money penalty is
not warranted or should be less than
the amount sought in the complaint;
and the name, address, and telephone
number of the person who will act as
the respondent’s representative, if any.

(b) Filing with the administrative law
judges. HUD shall file the complaint
and response with the Chief Docket
Clerk, Office of Administrative Law
Judges, in accordance with § 26.37 of
this title. If no response is submitted,
then HUD may file a motion for default
judgment, together with a copy of the
complaint, in accordance with § 26.39 of
this title.

§ 30.95 Hearings.
Hearings under this part shall be con-

ducted in accordance with the proce-
dures at 24 CFR part 26, subpart B.

§ 30.100 Settlements.
The officials listed at subpart B of

this part, or their designees (or the
Mortgagee Review Board for violations
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under § 30.35), are authorized to enter
into settlement agreements of civil
money penalty claims. Settlement
agreements may be executed at any
time prior to the issuing of a notice of
final determination under § 26.50 of this
title, and may include sanctions for
failure to comply with the terms of the
agreement.

PART 35—LEAD-BASED PAINT POI-
SONING PREVENTION IN CER-
TAIN RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES

Subpart A—Notifications to Purchasers and
Tenants of HUD-Associated Housing
Constructed Prior to 1978 of the Haz-
ards of Lead-Based Paint Poisoning

Sec.
35.1 Purpose and scope.
35.3 Definitions.
35.5 Requirements.

Subpart B—Prohibition Against the Use of
Lead-Based Paint in HUD-Associated
Housing

35.10 Purpose and scope.
35.12 Definitions.
35.14 Requirements.

Subpart C—Elimination of Lead-Based
Paint Hazards in HUD-Associated Housing

35.20 Purpose and scope.
35.22 Definitions.
35.24 Requirements.

Subpart D—Local Codes and Regulations

35.40 Compliance with local laws.
35.42 Requirements.

Subpart E—Elimination of Lead-Based Paint
Hazards in Federally-Owned Properties
Prior to Sale for Residential Habitation

35.50 Purpose and scope.
35.52 Applicability.
35.54 Definitions.
35.56 Requirements.

Subpart F—Prohibition Against the Use of
Lead-Based Paint in Federal and Fed-
erally-Assisted Construction or Reha-
bilitation of Residential Structures

35.60 Scope.
35.61 Definitions.
35.62 Federal construction; prohibition

against use of lead-based paint.
35.63 Federally assisted construction; prohi-

bition against use of lead-based paint.

35.64 Reports to the Secretary.
35.65 Authority for subpart B of these regu-

lations.

Subpart G [Reserved]

Subpart H—Disclosure of Known Lead-
Based Paint and/or Lead-Based Paint
Hazards Upon Sale or Lease of Resi-
dential Property

35.80 Purpose.
35.82 Scope and applicability.
35.84 Effective dates.
35.86 Definitions.
35.88 Disclosure requirements for sellers
and lessors.
35.90 Opportunity to conduct an evaluation.
35.92 Certification and acknowledgment of
disclosure.
35.94 Agent responsibilities.
35.96 Enforcement.
35.98 Impact on State and local require-
ments.

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 3535(d), 4821-4846 and
4852d.

SOURCE: 41 FR 28878, July 13, 1976, unless
otherwise noted.

Subpart A—Notification to Pur-
chasers and Tenants of HUD-
Associated Housing Con-
structed Prior to 1978 of the
Hazards of Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning

§ 35.1 Purpose and scope.
This subpart A establishes proce-

dures to assure that purchasers and
tenants of all HUD-associated housing
constructed prior to 1978 are notified of
the hazards of lead-based paint which
may exist in such housing, of the
symptoms and treatment of lead-based
paint poisoning, and of the importance
and availability of maintenance and re-
moval techniques for eliminating such
hazards.

[51 FR 27787, Aug. 1, 1986]

§ 35.3 Definitions.
Act. The Lead-Based Paint Poisoning

Prevention Act, Pub. L. 91–695, 84 Stat.
2078, as amended by Pub. L. 93–151 and
Pub. L. 94–317 (42 U.S.C. 4821–4846).

Assistant Secretaries. The Assistant
Secretaries in the Department of Hous-
ing and Urban Development.

HUD-associated housing. Any residen-
tial structure that is the subject of an
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